
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 FEBRUARY 2015 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the Meeting held on 28th January, 2015 (previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.    

  
5. Detection of Atrial Fibrillation as Part of a Wider Strategy for Stroke Prevention  
 
 Dr Alex Gaw, Chair of Lancashire North Clinical Commissioning Group, has been invited 

to attend the meeting to provide an update.  
  

Councillors are reminded that as Members of Overview and Scrutiny 
they may not be subjected to the Party Whip, which is prohibited under 

the Lancaster City Council Constitution. 



 

6. Update on Empty Properties  
 
 Members will be given a presentation by an Officer from the Regeneration and Planning 

Service. 
  
7. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
 The report for item 8 is a public report with exempt appendices and it will only be 

necessary to exclude members of the press and public should members need to refer to 
the information in the exempt appendices. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to pass the following 
recommendation in relation to the following item if it is necessary to refer to the exempt 
appendices:- 
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”  

  
8. Energy Strategy (Pages 1 - 98) 
 
 Report of Chief Officer (Environment). 
  
9. Consideration of any requests for Councillor Call for Action (in accordance with the 

process)  
 
10. Consideration of any Petitions (in accordance with the process)  
 
11. Locality Working  
 
12. Work Programme Report (Pages 99 - 102) 
 
 Report of Chief Officer (Governance).    
  
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors June Ashworth (Chairman), Caroline Jackson (Vice-Chairman), 

Roger Dennison, Tony Johnson, Roger Mace, Ian Pattison, Pam Pickles, Emma Smith 
and David Whitaker 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Tony Anderson, Chris Coates, Mike Greenall, Janet Hall, Joan Jackson, 

Margaret Pattison  and Richard Rollins  
 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Jenny Kay, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582065 or email 

jkay@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 



 

 
(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 

 
 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 

memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Tuesday, 17th February 2015.   

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
 

 
Energy Strategy 

25th Feb 2015 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Environment) 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
See attached report / appendices. 
 

This report is public, although Appendices B1, B2, B3, B4 are exempt from publication 
by virtue of paragraph 3, of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Overview and Scrutiny note progress and further actions on the 
 Council’s energy strategy as outlined in the attached report and 
 appendices. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Overview and Scrutiny have previously requested updates on the 

development of Council’s Energy Strategy and actions. 
 
2.0 Details 
 
2.1 The attached report and appendices were considered by Cabinet on 17th 
 February 2015. The decision of Cabinet will be reported orally at the 
 meeting. 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
See attached 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
See attached 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
See attached 

Agenda Item 8 Page 1



OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
See attached 
 
Information Services: 
See attached 
 
Property: 
See attached 
 
Open Spaces: 
See attached 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
See attached 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
See attached 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None  

Contact Officer: Mark Davies 
Telephone: 01524 582401 
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 2



CABINET  
 

Energy Strategy 
17th February 2015 

 
Report of Chief Officers- (Resources), (Environment), 

& (Health and Housing) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek approval of the Energy Strategy and present Cabinet with the results of a feasibility 
study into a municipal solar farm, and to seek permission to progress the project to the 
planning stage, updating Cabinet’s budget proposals accordingly. 
 

Key Decision x Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

20th January 2015 

This report is public, although Appendices B1, B2, B3 and B4 are exempt from 
publication by virtue of paragraph 3, of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
(1) That Cabinet approves the Energy Strategy / Action plan, recognising it 

as a working document to inform other corporate strategies and the 
allocation and prioritisation of resources. 

 
(2) That Cabinet agrees in principle to the development of a 5MW solar 

farm on its Middleton (former Shell/ICI) site. 
 

(3) That in order to progress the above, Cabinet approves the use of the 
Invest to Save Reserve to fund the project to the point where it can be 
submitted as a planning application. 
 

(4) That Officers report back on the outcome of the further detailed 
appraisal of the project in order to inform Cabinet’s final decision. 
 

(5) That Cabinet’s budget proposals for 2015/16 onwards be updated to 
provide for the above. 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Included in the Council’s ethos as set out in the Corporate Plan are- 
 

• Stewardship- ensuring the social, economic and environmental 

Page 3



wellbeing of the local area. 
 

• Municipal entrepreneurialism- capturing opportunities for 
collaborative innovation and income generation. 

 
• Sustainability- ensuring the Council contribute positively to the 

challenge of climate change and the need to manage our 
environment. 

 
• Value for Money- focusing on economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

 
One of the priorities for the Council is ‘Clean, Green and Safe Places’. This 
includes the outcome of minimising the Council’s impact on the environment. 

 
1.2 In order to contribute to the delivery of the above Cabinet (24th June 2014) 

agreed the following- 
 
• That the Renewable Energy Strategy’s overall aims and targets be 

agreed in principle. 
  
• That the Renewable Energy Strategy’s Action Plan be agreed in 

principle. 
 

• That Cabinet confirms its preferences for renewable energy projects 
being biomass boilers, biomass supply chains, small scale solar farms 
and exploring the potential through partnership for a wind turbine at 
Middleton; and that consideration be given to the most advantageous 
way of delivering these projects. 

  

• That Cabinet confirms that delivery of the Renewable Energy Strategy 
is a priority and in view of this approves the proposed use of the Invest 
to Save Reserve (for the General Fund) and the Business Support 
Reserve (for Council Housing) to meet the costs of consultants and in-
house provision, as necessary, to allow proposals to be developed and 
brought forward for consideration and final approval. 

 
1.3 Since then much work has taken place to progress this. This report will detail 

that work and request some key decisions from Cabinet. 
 

2.0 Proposal Details 

 

2.1 Energy Strategy / Action Plan 
Cabinet have already agreed these in principle. The current versions are 
presented in Appendix A1, A2. Cabinet are requested to approve these, as 
working documents to inform other corporate strategies, resource allocation 
and prioritisation.  They clearly define the scope of the Council’s activity in 
this area, within the context of the Council’s strategic, financial and operating 
capacity and set meaningful targets. 

Page 4



2.2 Update on Renewable Energy Projects- The action plan in Appendix A2 
provides progress with these. However in summary- 
 

• Biomass boilers- a strategic approach to energy management on the 
Council’s estate is being taken. Rather than just embark on a biomass 
boiler installation programme a detailed assessment of individual 
buildings and how energy can be best managed within in them has 
been commissioned (starting initially with Salt Ayre Sport Centre). The 
assessment will recommend what energy management measures will 
provide the best value for money and sustainability. The results of the 
Salt Ayre assessment are expected soon. This will then help inform 
how capital funding allocated to already identified property issues will 
be spent, and whether any further investment is required. 
 

• Biomass Supply Chain- for this to progress collaboration with a 
number of other authorities / organisations (including the County 
Council) is required. Early discussions have taken place and there is 
some interest. However, at this point in time the priority for most 
Councils is dealing with the immediate impact of central Government 
funding reductions. It is expected that if feasibility can be 
demonstrated this will be a more medium-term aim. 

 
• Wind Turbine at Middleton- since the previous report to Cabinet it 

has been established that as things stand the most immediately 
advantageous use of the land would be for the location of a solar farm. 
Perhaps in the future, a solar farm as described below would not 
necessarily preclude this option also, at least in simple site terms, 
although clearly this does not consider or address the operational, 
planning and financial and implications. 

 
• Municipal Solar Farm on Council land at Middleton- a detailed 

feasibility study has been commissioned. This and further supporting 
information is provided in Appendix B1, B2, B3, B4 (All Exempt). The 
feasibility study demonstrates that the most advantageous route for 
the Council would be to develop a 5MW solar farm which would utilise 
approximately 15 hectares of the 40 hectare site that belongs to the 
Council. This would offer an indicative return of £4M in total over 20 
years, from investment estimated at £5.2M.  In order to progress this, 
the next stage would be to commission the detailed work needed to 
submit a planning application. It is estimated the fees involved in this 
would cost £70-80K. The work is detailed in Appendix B4 but includes 
detailed topographical surveys, habitat studies, deposit for connection 
to grid by network operator etc. There are clearly risks attached to this 
stage and these include- 

 
• Planning permission may not be granted. 
• Detailed surveys may show there are issues that impact on the 

overall cost / viability of the project. 
• National / local government policies radically change after the 

elections. 
 

However, without making a positive decision to embark on the next stage no 

Page 5



further progress can be made on this project. Delaying this stage means that 
the FiT rate will have reduced further which then reduces the amount of 
income / rate of return for the project and conflicts with the Council’s agreed 
ethos and priorities. 
 
In parallel with this phase of the project, work would take place to appraise 
how construction of the solar farm is best financed and procured. Detailed 
work would also take place to provide detailed appraisal of the costs and 
income of the project over its 20 year lifecycle. 

 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 As outlined in the report.   This report has also been forwarded to the ward 
councillor. It will also be considered at the next meeting of Overview and 
Scrutiny. 
 

4.0 Options  

4.1 Option 1a- To approve the Energy Strategy / Action plan as a working 
document to inform other corporate strategies, resource allocation and 
prioritisation. 
 

4.2 Option 1b- To not approve the Energy Strategy / Action Plan. 
 

4.3 Option 2a- To agree in principle that the Council uses some of its land at 
Middleton to develop a 5MW solar farm and authorise Officers to progress the 
project up to planning application stage, and make appropriate provision 
within Cabinet’s budget proposals.  This is on the basis that Cabinet would 
take the final decision on the project, rather than it be a matter for full Council.  
This is considered appropriate given the Council’s existing corporate priorities 
and timescales for the project (and in any event, call-in would apply to the 
final decision). 
 

4.4 Option 2b- To not agree to the development of a solar farm. 
 

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

5.1 The officer preferred options are 1a and 2a. 

6.0  Conclusion 

6.1 This report sets out a strategy and action plan for the delivery of a key 
element of the Council’s Corporate Plan. Furthermore, it provides a practical 
option for a flagship project that would help the financial sustainability of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan over the next 20 years. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
As outlined in the report 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

Page 6



As outlined in the report and appendices. If the project progresses more detailed impact 
assessment work will be undertaken. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Legal Services have been consulted and have no further comments 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Energy Strategy- there are no direct additional financial implications arising from the energy 
strategy / action plan. 

Solar Farm- As mentioned earlier, based on a preliminary submission, the potential solar 
farm site at Middleton would offer an indicative return on investment of £4M over 20 years. 
 
The scheme is estimated to generate around £430K of income in the first year from feed in 
tariffs and energy export. This amount of income (or more) would be expected annually for a 
period of 20 years.  The actual annual budgetary savings would be less, as the operational 
and capital financing costs would need to be covered.  Nonetheless, the estimated payback 
period is 13 years. 
 
The capital costs have been estimated at £5.2M, but Officers believe that due to the current 
state and prior use of the site, this cost may be considerably higher. Substantial site 
preparation works would erode the return and lengthen payback period.  
 

The full financial implications are covered in the exempt appendix. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None 

Information Services: 

None  

Property: 

As outlined in the report and appendices. 

Open Spaces: 

As outlined in the report and appendices. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The S151 Officer has contributed to the production of this report, which is her name in part 
(as Chief Officer (Resources)). 

As the development of a solar farm would require a significant increase in the Council’s 
underlying need to borrow or Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), to be met by either 
internal or external borrowing, then matters relating to its affordability, sustainability and 
prudence must be considered, drawing on the requirements of the Prudential Code, which 
provides a statute-backed framework for managing capital investment in local authorities. 

Indications are that these factors are readily manageable, based on the information available 

Page 7



to date, but clearly figures could well change, perhaps significantly so.   

This report is not seeking a final decision from Members, however.  This provides an 
opportunity to reassess the proposal’s financial appraisal prior to committing to significant 
investment.  Nonetheless, taking a decision to progress this initiative will commit the Council 
to some early expenditure, as identified in the report.  Also, time constraints mean that once 
a detailed business case has been completed, a timely final decision would be required.  
Cabinet is advised to note these points. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact Officer: Mark Davies 
Telephone:  01524 582401 
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 8



1 | P a g e  

 

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL 
Energy Strategy  
Draft v2.7 

  

Page 9



2 | P a g e  

 

1 CONTENTS 

2 Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

2.1 The New Focus On Energy ......................................................................................................... 5 

2.2 The Base Case .................................................................................................................................. 6 

3 The New Targets ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

4 Energy Reduction and Efficiency ...................................................................................................... 9 

4.1 Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

4.2 The Current Position .................................................................................................................... 9 

4.3 The Way Forward .......................................................................................................................... 9 

5 The Council’s Buildings ..................................................................................................................... 12 

5.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................................12 

5.2 The Current Position ..................................................................................................................12 

5.2.1 Corporate buildings ..........................................................................................................12 

5.2.2 Social Housing .....................................................................................................................13 

5.3 The Way Forward ........................................................................................................................14 

5.3.1 Corporate Buildings ..........................................................................................................14 

5.3.2 Social housing ......................................................................................................................14 

6 The Private Sector ................................................................................................................................ 15 

6.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................................15 

6.2 The Current Position ..................................................................................................................15 

6.2.1 Regulatory Functions .......................................................................................................15 

6.2.2 Affordable Warmth / ECO ..............................................................................................16 

6.3 The Way Forward ........................................................................................................................17 

6.3.1 Fuel Poverty / Affordable Warmth .............................................................................17 

7 Transport ................................................................................................................................................. 19 

7.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................................19 

7.2 The Current Position ..................................................................................................................19 

7.2.1 Commercial fleet ................................................................................................................19 

7.2.2 Grey Fleet ..............................................................................................................................19 

7.3 The Way Forward ........................................................................................................................20 

8 Renewable Energy Projects ............................................................................................................. 22 

8.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................................22 

8.2 The Current Position ..................................................................................................................22 

8.3 The Way Forward ........................................................................................................................23 

8.3.1 Development of Ground Mounted Solar PV ............................................................23 

Page 10



3 | P a g e  

 

8.3.2 The introduction of biomass boilers ..........................................................................23 

8.3.3 The development of a biomass supply chain .........................................................23 

8.3.4 The harnessing of wind power .....................................................................................23 

9 Conclusions ............................................................................................................................................. 24 

10 Glossary .................................................................................................................................................... 25 

 

  

Page 11



4 | P a g e  

 

2 INTRODUCTION 

Lancaster City Council, as part of its ethos is committed to – 

• Stewardship- ensuring the social, economic and environmental wellbeing 
of the local area. 

• Municipal entrepreneurialism- capturing opportunities for collaborative 
innovation and income generation. 

• Sustainability- ensuring the council contributes positively to the challenge 
of climate change and the need to manage our environment. 

• Value for money- focusing on economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

One of the priorities of the Council is ‘Clean, green and safe places’. A part of the 
desired outcome of this priority is that ‘the Council’s impact on the environment’ 
will be minimised and we have a broad range of ongoing activities which help to 
achieve this.   

Along with other local authorities, Lancaster City Council has already experienced 
a major reduction in funding from central government and this trend is set to 
continue. In order to respond to this challenge the Council has identified what its 
priorities are and to what extent they will be delivered. 

There is a challenging budget shortfall which will rise further in 2016/17 and 
beyond. One approach which the council can take to deliver its stated aims and at 
the same time offset some of the impact of local authority funding cuts is to adopt 
a strategic approach to energy management.  

The Council recognises, there is more to energy management than reducing the 
costs of our activities. There is scientific consensus that we need to reduce the 
amount of man-made carbon emissions to mitigate the worst effects of climate 
change. As a large user of energy in the district, the council is well placed to make 
a significant contribution to reducing the district’s carbon emissions by 
addressing how it uses its energy.  

In order to address this, we have developed this Energy Strategy which details 
how we intend to achieve this in a way that matches our ethos and vision. 
Through this Strategy, we have identified the priority areas where our efforts and 
resources will generate the greatest benefits. This Strategy also contains an Action 
Plan (Appendix 1) of required tasks. This Strategy is a working document so as 
actions are undertaken and new processes established, Lancaster City Council will 
be able to ensure that the identification and implementation of energy saving 
projects becomes an integral part of the council’s operations. 

This is not a new approach to energy management, but it recognises that the next 
steps required to further improve the council’s energy efficiency will require an 
increased commitment towards investment and future planning. It is also 
expected that in those areas where we are seeking to develop new energy 
projects, the council’s actions could present opportunities to secure wider 
economic benefits for the local area.   

Page 12



5 | P a g e  

 

2.1 THE NEW FOCUS ON ENERGY 
The focus on energy management is not new but it is one which has grown in 
importance in recent years. This has been reflected in the evolution of policy at 
both a national and international level, the most recent of these are as follows: 

• The Climate Change Act 2008 

The Act makes it the duty of the Secretary of State to ensure that the net 
UK carbon account for all six greenhouse gases for the year 2050 is at 
least 80% lower than the 1990 baseline, toward avoiding dangerous 
climate change.  

• Energy Act 2008 

The Energy Act was passed in November 2008, alongside the Climate 
Change Act to ensure the long term delivery of the Government’s overall 
energy reduction and climate change. The Act led to the development of 
the Feed-in Tariff (FIT) and Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI); financial 
mechanisms to promote the uptake of renewable energy technologies.  

• Energy Act 2011 

The Act includes provision for the Green Deal Energy Company Obligation 
(ECO) and also financial mechanisms to support the installation of 
energy efficiency measures in domestic properties.  

• EU Energy Efficiency Directive 2012 

This Directive establishes a common framework of measures for the 
promotion of energy efficiency within the European Union (EU) in order 
to ensure the achievement of the EU’s 2020 20% headline target on 
energy efficiency and to pave the way for further energy efficiency 
improvements beyond that date.  

• Energy Efficiency Strategy 2012 

Through the Energy Efficiency Strategy the UK Government sets out the 
direction for energy efficiency policy for the coming decades. It makes 
clear the UK Government’s ambition, the barriers that they need to 
address, and the additional steps they are taking to stimulate the energy 
efficiency market. It shows how they will act to connect finance with 
demand, encourage innovation, and make energy efficiency information 
more accessible to the consumer. 

As the pressure to achieve legally binding carbon reduction targets increases, it 
can be anticipated that the Government will place further duties on the Council. 
Therefore, there is a need to plan ahead, particularly when there are currently 
financial incentives available for renewable energy projects to assist in this 
regard. 

  

Page 13



6 | P a g e  

 

2.2 THE BASE CASE 
In recent years, Lancaster City Council has taken steps to improve how it uses 
energy. Energy usage across all Council functions is actively monitored The 
overall trend is one of reduction.  

Central to achieving these reductions has been the pro-active nature of the 
council. In 2008, the Carbon Trust undertook an Assessment of Energy Saving 
Opportunities for Lancaster City Council. The recommendations of this report 
helped direct actions for improvement and led to the development of staff 
working groups to reduce the amount of energy which the council uses.  

The council also developed a Climate Change Strategy 2008-2014 which set out the 
key actions the council aimed to achieve to reduce energy consumption and 
resulting carbon emissions.  Within this Strategy the council set a target of 
reducing carbon emissions by 34% by 2020. Although we are only halfway 
through this period, our success in reducing the emissions has been significant.  

As examples- 

• Energy consumption from both buildings and transport used by the 
council in the baseline year of 2008/09 was 11,000MWh, however, during 
the 2012/13 year, energy consumption had fallen to 7,730MWh. The 
resulting carbon emissions during the same period have fallen from 
4,782.28 tonnes of Carbon Dioxide (tCO₂) to 3,570.12 tCO₂.  

• The most dramatic reduction to date has been observed at the Council’s 
sports facility, Salt Ayre Sports Centre, where technological and 
behavioural improvements achieved a large reduction in energy 
consumption since 2008. In recognition of this achievement, staff at Salt 
Ayre Sports Centre were awarded a nationally recognised Green Apple 
Award.  

• Since 2011, the Council has taken steps to install solar photovoltaic panels 
at a number of its properties and to date has installed a total of 280kW at 
12 locations, varying from the sports centre to council housing properties. 
This amount continues to increase. 

• In addition, the council has taken steps to improve the energy 
consumption at its social housing properties. At Beck View Sheltered 
Housing Scheme, for example, a 26.5kW roof mounted solar PV system 
was installed in 2012 which has the capacity to generate approximately 
24,000kWh of power per annum. In addition, a new LED lighting system 
has been installed which is expected to deliver 80% energy savings on the 
previous system, whilst a newly installed energy saving lift is designed to 
be up to 75% more energy efficient than conventional systems and non-
regenerative drives. During 2013, the three boilers were replaced by two 
high energy efficiency condensing boilers and there are plans to install solar 
thermal panels to heat water during 2014. 

• The council is currently in the process of reviewing its property estate to 
ensure that a more efficient use of space can be achieved. The results of 
this review will be instrumental in determining the most appropriate way 
forward when we look to address how we use our energy.   

Page 14



7 | P a g e  

 

However, whilst significant successes are being achieved through our recent 
actions, we recognise that as the number of opportunities for improved efficiency 
declines, a greater focus on the potential for and development of the use of 
renewable energy generation will be required to maximise the potential gains for 
the Council. To help achieve this in the most economic, efficient and effective way, 
the opportunities for joint action with neighbouring authorities and external 
partners increases. In setting out how Lancaster City Council will address these 
issues, this Strategy considers how the council can take the next great leap in 
reducing energy consumption and the resulting costs and carbon emissions even 
further.  

 

 

  

Page 15



8 | P a g e  

 

3 THE NEW TARGETS 

The principal aim of this Energy Strategy is that- 

“The Council’s impact on the environment will be minimised by reducing energy 
consumption and using renewable energy generation technologies” 

In achieving this aim, this Strategy will be driven by the following key targets:- 

• To reduce energy consumption by 20% by 2020 against a baseline year of 
2012/13 

• To reduce the council’s carbon dioxide emissions by 20% by 2020 against 
a baseline year of 2012/13 

• A growing proportion of the councils energy needs will be generated from 
renewable sources by 2020  

• A growing proportion of the council’s mileage will be covered by Ultra-
Low Emissions Vehicles by 2020 against a baseline year of 2012/13.  

• New build Council social housing will be as energy efficient as possible  

This approach involves a commitment to reducing energy demand, improving 
energy efficiency and considering renewable energy sources as an alternative to 
fossil fuels. In practical terms many of these activities will be delivered as a by-
product of wider projects and initiatives but this strategic focus will ensure they 
form part of an integrated approach to the management of energy issues.  

This Strategy will meet its principal aim by undertaking actions under a number 
of specific areas of focus (detailed below). Each area represents a topic where 
concerted effort is required in order to bring about a step change in energy 
consumption. Under each of these headings the Strategy outlines the current 
position and identifies areas for opportunities.  

• Energy reduction and efficiency 
• The council’s buildings 
• Private sector buildings 
• Transport 
• Renewable energy projects 

Contained within the Action Plan are a number of strategic actions for each area of 
focus. Detailed actions are not included within this Strategy as these can very 
quickly go out of date and do not allow for the development of responses to 
unexpected future opportunities which may present themselves. The exact actions 
that are needed to achieve the priority areas for action will therefore be 
determined in more detail by appropriate working groups within the Council. 

 

  

Page 16



9 | P a g e  

 

4 ENERGY REDUCTION AND EFFICIENCY 

4.1 INTRODUCTION 
The Government’s Energy Strategy1 identifies energy efficiency as:  

“A measure of energy used for delivering a given service. Improving energy efficiency 
means getting more from the energy that we use.” 

When addressing ways to reduce the amount of energy that the council uses it is 
important to consider energy efficiency measures and technological 
improvements which may be available. Both aspects will be addressed in later 
sections of this strategy, but to ensure that there is a strategic direction which 
oversees their use, this section considers how the council will approach the 
general theme of energy reduction and efficiency.  

4.2 THE CURRENT POSITION 
The City Council is structured into five services:  

• Environment 
• Governance 
• Health and Housing 
• Regeneration and Planning  
• Resources  

Each Service has responsibility for the operations within their remit. However, the 
Property Group currently support and have existing working relationships with 
all Services within the council, providing services such building maintenance and 
energy monitoring.  

4.3 THE WAY FORWARD 
In order to successfully deliver this strategy, all Services must play an active role. 
Therefore, to ensure a uniform introduction, the responsibility for implementing 
this Strategy will be appropriately assigned to allow us to effectively coordinate 
the actions set out in this Action Plan to make sure that we are effective in 
achieving our goals. In addition, the energy consumption across the council’s 
building portfolio will be closely examined with appropriate support provided for 
building managers.  

Easy Savings 

This strategy recognises that the easiest way of saving energy is to think of ways 
of not using it in the first place. Therefore it will focus on sensible, low cost, 
common sense ideas- 

                                                             

1 The Energy Efficiency Strategy, UK Government 2012; available from 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/65602
/6927-energy-efficiency-strategy--the-energy-efficiency.pdf; accessed 29th May 2014 

Page 17



10 | P a g e  

 

• The council currently requires that any decision which is required of 
Members, whether full Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, an Individual 
Cabinet Member or an urgent business decision, requires a report which 
should be prepared along existing guidelines. This includes the 
requirement to check a number of additional considerations of a reports 
contents including, for example, the legal and financial implications. To 
ensure appropriate alignment of all future plans and resources to achieve 
energy reduction measures and support to carry out the measures in this 
Action Plan, consideration will be given towards incorporating an element 
of energy management into the report writing procedures.  

• An easy example could be an IT programme that switches off all PCs that 
are still connected to the network at a predetermined time each evening. 
In general terms, the Council will focus on the different sources of money 
that can be used to fund energy efficiency and consideration will be given 
towards the use of the alternative sources of funding which may be 
available to the council.  

• The UK Government is currently beginning the process of implementing 
the energy audits requirement under Article 8 of the Energy Efficiency 
Directive. When this is formally in place it will be necessary to undertake 
appropriate surveys to identify additional opportunities which may be 
appropriate. Energy audits are an essential tool to achieve energy savings 
and they are necessary to assess the existing energy consumption and 
identify the whole range of opportunities to save energy. Therefore, in 
advance of the expected requirements to be implemented by the UK 
Government, the council will work towards incorporating a programme of 
energy audits at all its major corporate buildings.  

Staff Engagement 

Whilst physical changes to buildings are important, it is just as important to 
recognise that all of the council’s staff have an instrumental role to play in 
improving how energy is used within the council.  However, to provide the 
necessary support, the Council needs to ensure all who work for the Council 
understand why the Council is doing this and how all can play a part. To ensure 
that it is effective, it will need a plan that needs to be drawn up in consultation 
with the staff and trade unions. The key features of the scheme will include: 

• A defined purpose i.e. to reduce the amount of energy that the Council 
uses, and the associated costs and environmental concerns.  

• A work plan containing clear targets 
• A determination of rewards available under this scheme to participants.  
• Regular consideration of reports and progress by Management Team  
• Records of improvement will be kept and circulated widely 
• A process for consideration of staff suggestions 
• A process for accessing  funding to enable the financing of any changes 

which may be required 
• Provision of appropriate training for any staff where a gain can be made 

e.g. how to use heating controls.  

Page 18



11 | P a g e  

 

To ensure the awareness scheme is consistent throughout the council a lead role 
will be identified. This role, in conjunction with the Management Team and the 
Trade Unions, will shape the precise nature of the scheme to ensure that it 
remains effective and relevant to the council’s needs.   

Good communication is essential to maximise the potential success so through 
being open with the actions and achievements it is hoped that the council’s staff 
will be able to engage with how changes to their habits can have a positive impact 
upon the council and individual working conditions.  

The Council is a people business and the services that the Council is able to 
present are largely based on the people that it employs, in terms of experience, 
quality and commitment. To demonstrate the council’s commitment to its staff, 
consideration will be given towards how the actions of this Strategy could also 
lead to potential benefits for staff.  The Council will examine these potential 
benefits and Management Team will recommend proposals to be put in place 
alongside this strategy for consideration of members; 

Procurement 

The council is comfortable that it currently has the best value for money through 
its arrangements for electricity procurement having recently re-procured a new 
deal to last until 2019. The gas contract is due to expire in 2015 and appropriate 
arrangements will be considered at this time.  

 

  

Page 19



12 | P a g e  

 

5 THE COUNCIL’S BUILDINGS 

5.1 INTRODUCTION 
Lancaster City Council’s corporate buildings account for 57% of the council’s total 
carbon dioxide emissions. The council currently operates a number of corporate 
buildings as well as a large number of homes within its social housing stock. This 
section considers the buildings the Council owns and operates, that have a cost to 
it and also impact on the services that it can provide. 

5.2 THE CURRENT POSITION 

5.2.1 Corporate buildings 
Lancaster City Council is responsible for the management of 160 buildings 
(excluding social housing). Of these properties, it has the sole responsibility for 
the energy management of 35 properties which include: town halls, depots, 
information centres, a sports centre, cemeteries, and public toilets.  

The council holds data from Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs) and Display 
Energy Certificates (DECs) in relation to its buildings and collects full data on 
energy consumption which it uses for quarterly and annual reporting as well as 
identifying trends.  

It also has access to Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) which shows the electricity 
and gas consumption for the majority of the council properties and uses the 
Npower “Encompass” and British Gas “Energy 360” systems respectively. The 
systems are currently used for reference only, but data is available on the kWh 
usage only per building, on a daily, weekly, monthly and annually periods. The 
council are currently in dialog with the encompass & Energy 360 teams to explore 
adapting the reporting options across a number of buildings so that they are in 
line with the Property Group’s Energy monitor. 

The Council is currently reviewing its property portfolio. The property review 
function is essential to the effective strategic management of the Council’s 
property assets and is being undertaken to ensure we have the right properties in 
the right place and at the right time and cost for the delivery of all front line and 
support services. The process will enable us to: 

• Challenge why we hold property and how we are making use of it. 
• Consider property solutions to particular problems that are being 

encountered  
• Find ways of achieving desired outcomes such as rationalisation, reducing 

costs, and increasing efficiency.  

The review function allows us to take a corporate look at areas of concern, and 
allows us to find solutions to property related problems, issues and areas of 
under-performance to ensure the corporate property portfolio remains as 
efficient, effective and economical as it can be and supports the achievement of 
both corporate and service delivery objectives. For example, the review process 
can be used to identify poorly performing property with high maintenance 

Page 20



13 | P a g e  

 

backlog, low suitability, poor utilisation and high running costs so that these 
issues can be addressed via rationalisation rather than just financial expenditure. 

The Council is well aware of the costs of energy for its buildings and the energy 
performance of those buildings on the costs. In 2012 a Condition Survey was 
undertaken that led to a planned repair programme. The money for this work is in 
the Council’s capital programme. However, the property review will determine 
the scope of the works which will be undertaken.  

The Council has done some boiler replacement and fitted solar PV systems of 
49kW on to both the White Lund Depot and Salt Ayre Sports Centre. However, 
there remains much more scope for the potential for on-site carbon reduction by 
way of renewable energy.  

5.2.2 Social Housing 
The Council still retains its stock of council housing and is the largest provider of 
social housing within the district managing over 3,700 homes. Through its 
housing asset management strategy, the Council ensures that its homes are what 
current and future tenants will want, are of the right type, in the right location, 
affordable, energy efficient and environmentally responsible. 

The Council is required to: 

• Ensure that tenants’ homes meet the standard set out in section five of the 
Government’s Decent Homes Guidance and continue to maintain their 
homes to at least this standard 

• Meet the standards of design and quality that applied when the home was 
built, and were required as a condition of publicly funded financial 
assistance, if these standards are higher than the Decent Homes Standard 

To achieve this council has a long-term 30 year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
business plan which identifies the financial resources and the long term 
investment programme required to maintain the council’s HRA assets. Through its 
housing capital programme the council is spending around £5 million a year in 
supporting these objectives. Within the programme there is a significant element 
of investment to address energy efficiency and the delivery of renewable 
technologies.  

In September 2012 Cabinet agreed to adopt a HRA medium term financial strategy 
and sets a rent policy that supports the future investment needs of the HRA 
housing stock, and enables the council to consider using HRA funding in a wider 
regeneration context. 

In addition to the Council housing capital programme, the Council has a planned 
maintenance programme over just over £1m a year over which £600,000 is 
allocated to servicing and maintaining existing heating systems which are 
predominantly gas central heating systems. 

The council has ambitions of building new council houses in the district to address 
the needs for 1 bedroom accommodation, and has established a fund to deliver an 
initial programme that would support the spend of approximately £2m per year 
over a 3 year period. The exact specification for these homes has still to be 
decided but there is an expectation that they will be low energy use homes. 

Page 21



14 | P a g e  

 

As part of the programme to install solar PV on the Council’s corporate buildings, 
the council fitted solar PV systems totalling 187kW on twelve council housing 
properties. As with the corporate buildings, the council has not exhausted the 
potential for on-site carbon reduction by way of renewable energy.  

5.3 THE WAY FORWARD 

5.3.1 Corporate Buildings 
The Council needs to expedite its work on the property review, in order that other 
decisions on energy can be taken in the knowledge that the properties in question 
will still be part of the Council’s estate and therefore justify expenditure. Those 
buildings which are necessary to effectively deliver the Council’s operations will 
be considered in a new light, focusing on the energy costs and potential for income 
generation. In this way, buildings which are currently significant liabilities, can be 
transformed into low cost assets or even assets that generate an income each 
year.  

The Council will consolidate the work that it has done to date on building use and 
energy consumption to inform this new strategy. However, the new work 
programme should have a heavy energy use / renewables element, to ensure that 
every aspect of energy use in the building, the carbon effectiveness of its fabric, 
and the potential for renewables on site has been examined.  

In order to reduce energy consumption across the Council’s portfolio, greater 
interrogation of the existing meters and sub-meters will be undertaken. A system 
of benchmarking will be developed which will reflect both published benchmarks 
for buildings and local factors influencing consumption. This will be used to 
provide an assessment of energy performance of each building and lead to the 
development of an energy reduction plan for all buildings. The responsibility for 
undertaking these actions will be identified and assigned accordingly. 

5.3.2 Social housing 
The Council’s social housing is in good shape, and the council is in a good position 
to move its housing work into a more low carbon model. The potential for 
expanding the housing related solar PV scheme should be investigated, as this 
offers good potential for a HRA based scheme.  

The capital and planned maintenance programmes identified for 2014/15 have 
been drawn up from the information from the 2001, and 2008 Stock Condition 
Surveys which have informed the investment requirements within the 30 year 
HRA business plan. The investment needs of the HRA assets will be further 
informed by undertaking a stock condition survey. The improvement work will 
consider the potential for fitting renewables at the same time as other, more 
routine, maintenance and improvement work is undertaken. 

The Council has indicated that it intends to build a significant number of new 
houses over the next ten years. In general these homes will aim to be as energy 
efficient as possible. Work is currently taking place to establish how to achieve 
this in the most effective way. 

  

Page 22



15 | P a g e  

 

6 THE PRIVATE SECTOR 

6.1 INTRODUCTION 
This Strategy is primarily focused on the improvements in energy consumption 
which can be made by the Council. However, the Council has a major impact on 
the energy consumption in the wider community. This section considers the role 
of the planning system and the impact the private sector housing in the district 
has on addressing fuel poverty.  

6.2 THE CURRENT POSITION  

6.2.1 Regulatory Functions 
The Regeneration and Planning Service can influence and determine the 
standards, quality and design of new development through the planning system.  
Sustainable design can make a positive contribution to improving the overall 
sustainability of new development in the district by minimising or avoiding any 
negative environmental impacts that may be caused by new development. It can 
also contribute to the transition of a low carbon future by addressing the 
Government’s national zero carbon buildings policy.  The national policy sets clear 
deadlines for new homes and non-residential buildings achieving the zero carbon 
standards. The proposed mechanism for achieving the requirements of this policy 
is through an incremental increase in the energy efficiency requirements of the 
Building Regulations (Part L). These requirements concern the carbon emissions 
of new development and will eventually lead to Building Regulations requiring 
new development to achieve a zero carbon rating in accordance with an agreed 
definition. Checking compliance with Building Regulations is a separate process to 
getting planning approval; however both processes must be complied with. In the 
context of sustainable design applicants are encouraged to consider both together 
at the design stage as this will help to avoid problems, delays and increased costs 
as proposals are progressed through to application stage. 

Furthermore, there are rigorous standards applied to the design and quality of 
new affordable housing, driven through the Homes and Communities Agency’s 
Design and Quality Standards and Housing Quality Indicators.   At present, all new 
affordable dwellings are required to meet Code Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes as a minimum, but the Homes and Communities Agency actively encourage 
Registered Providers to provide housing that exceeds Code Level 3, and higher 
standards could become a mandatory requirement in the future.   

Lancaster City Council is developing a Development Plan Document (DPD) 2011-
2031 which provides a new planning framework for the district. Contained within 
the DPD are a number of policies of which Policy DM17 sets out the Council’s 
position on Renewable Energy Generation. Proposals for wind energy should also 
be assessed against the criteria set out in Policy DM18 of this document. 

A large number of buildings in Lancaster District are typified by stone wall 
construction or a mixture of stone and render, and the vast majority of these 
which were constructed before the late 19th century are also of solid wall 

Page 23



16 | P a g e  

 

construction, with cavity wall construction becoming more  common in the inter 
war years. 

Since energy costs began to rise in the 1970’s moves have been made in new and 
existing construction to reduce energy usage and loss of heat from buildings 
through applying insulation measures. Over recent years improvements have 
focused on cavity wall buildings with attention now turning to include solid wall 
construction.  

Insulation of solid wall constructed buildings and in particular stone built is not 
without its problems, both visually and technically. Two approaches are generally 
available, either adding insulation to the exterior or to the internal wall surfaces.  

This is a particular problem where the appearance of the external wall needs to be 
retained as in the case of listed buildings and buildings in conservation areas. In 
Lancaster District there are a large number of buildings listed around 1300 plus 
or buildings located within one of the 37 Conservation Areas. For listed buildings, 
internal features and detailing can also be important to retain and therefore 
alterations to the internal walls can create significant problems and loss of 
historical significance.  

For listed buildings, any form of alteration which would affect the character and 
significance of the property both internally and externally will require listed 
building consent. In Conservation Areas, planning permission would be required 
for the addition of cladding or render to the external walls.   

For residential buildings in other areas planning permission for the addition of 
cladding would be required for flats or apartment if it were to overhang the 
adjacent highway or if the proposed cladding was not of a similar visual 
appearance.  

6.2.2 Affordable Warmth / ECO 
Lancaster City Council recognises the importance of tackling fuel poverty as a 
means of improving the health and wellbeing of vulnerable members of the 
community, although, we also acknowledge that the Council’s ability to influence 
fuel prices and household incomes is limited.  

The fuel poverty statistics published by DECC in 20142 identified 6,869 
households in the Lancaster District (12% of the total number of households) as 
being in fuel poverty; the 59th highest rate of fuel poverty out of the 326 
authorities across England.  

Lancaster City Council has as strong record of providing assistance to those 
residents who are struggling to heat their homes adequately, are in ill health or 
living in poor housing. Housing conditions relating to excess cold and damp in the 
private rental sector are being tackled through working with private sector 
landlords and taking enforcement action where appropriate.   

                                                             

2 Information available from 
http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/corporate/web/?siteid=6121&pageid=35490&e=e 
accessed 23rd June 2014   

Page 24



17 | P a g e  

 

In addition, the Council’s Home Improvement Agency (HIA) helps vulnerable 
residents who are elderly disabled or on a low income to repair, improve, 
maintain and adapt their homes. This is achieved by providing services and free 
impartial advice on repairs and maintenance, energy efficiency, home safety, 
getting building estimates, increasing benefits and raising finance to carry out 
work, independent advice on moving home and providing information on Safe 
Trader registered contractors. The HIA also delivers the Warm Homes Service 
which offers a wide range of practical assistance to help the most vulnerable 
residents remain warm and safe in their homes over the winter period. The 
measures available will be decided following an assessment and depend on the 
resident’s individual circumstances.  

A partnership was formed in 2011 between the four local authorities of Blackpool, 
Fylde, Wyre and Lancaster, and Public Health in the two primary care trusts 
(PCTs) of Blackpool and North Lancashire, to help ensure a co-ordinated approach 
to addressing fuel poverty in the district. This partnership oversaw the 
development of an Affordable Warmth Statement and 10 point Action Plan to 
ensure that action is being taken in the district to address the most pressing 
affordable warmth related issues.. This built on the established Lancaster district 
Affordable Warmth Group which was a partnership between Lancaster City 
Council, Lancashire County Council, Help Direct, CAB and LESS. Following the NHS 
reforms, the Public Health support for Affordable Warmth has continued from 
Lancashire County Council and Blackpool Unitary Council. 

6.3 THE WAY FORWARD 
The Council is developing the DPD which provides a new planning framework for 
the area. Although reference to the guidance is made in this strategy, it is not 
replicated here to avoid duplication. The DPD is currently subject to public 
examination and the current position will be confirmed once completed. 

When looking to address how planning concerns can be addressed when 
considering energy improvement measures, in addition to the aforementioned 
character and heritage issues, numerous technical issues would need to be 
considered which would influence a design, in particular condensation, cold 
bridging and the need to allow the building to breathe. Considerable 
debate/research is currently being undertaken nationally as to what may be the 
best approach and what materials to use for the addition of linings to the internal 
surfaces of solid wall buildings although there are many examples of internal 
lining work currently being undertaken on conversion of vacant buildings in the 
district. 

Whilst this debate is ongoing, it may be more cost effective to look at the property 
as a whole and give consideration to air leakage problems, draught proofing 
windows and doors, insulating roof spaces, suspended floors and improvements 
to the heating system and its operation.   

6.3.1 Fuel Poverty / Affordable Warmth 
The Council has recently developed an Affordable Warmth Action Plan which 
details the actions the council will take to address affordable warmth issues 

Page 25



18 | P a g e  

 

within the Lancaster district. A commitment from this Strategy will be to oversee 
the application of this Action Plan.  

The Council will aim to establish a model to maximise opportunities through the 
ECO and equivalent initiatives. However, considering ongoing actions being 
undertaken by other authorities within the Lancashire area, in the short-term the 
Council will also keep a watching brief on these in order to determine the most 
appropriate way forward.  

  

Page 26



19 | P a g e  

 

7 TRANSPORT 

7.1 INTRODUCTION 
Lancaster City Council has a vehicle fuel budget of £723,300 for the current 
financial year (2014/15), and the CO2 emissions from the Council’s transport is a 
major source of greenhouse emissions, accounting for 43% of the council’s total 
carbon emissions. This section explores the options available to address the 
energy consumption from the Council’s transport.   

7.2 THE CURRENT POSITION 
Lancaster City Council’s vehicles fit into two broad categories, namely the formal 
commercial fleet vehicles (predominantly vehicles owned or leased by the Council 
to undertake its functions) and grey fleet i.e. mileage allowances paid to staff to 
undertake their duties on behalf of the Council.  

7.2.1 Commercial fleet 
The Council operates approximately 180 vehicles comprising Large Goods 
Vehicles (LGV), small and medium sized vans and specialised grounds 
maintenance equipment. All the vehicles are maintained in-house and are usually 
kept for 5 - 6 years for light vehicles and 6 - 7 years for LGVs, although this is 
currently being reviewed.  

As with most Councils, all vehicles have to be purchased via a competitive tender 
process. Considerations when procuring new vehicles are based on the suitability 
of the asset to do the job for which it is being purchased, and the whole life cost of 
the vehicle.  

Work is taking place to assess the feasibility of transition to the use of Ultra low 
emission vehicles (ULEV) as possible replacement for some fleet vehicles in the 
future. 

Fitting telematics to the Councils vehicles is a priority that is currently being 
implemented. 

7.2.2 Grey Fleet 
The Council currently operates a Casual Users Allowance scheme with some posts 
designated as being Essential Users for this current financial year. However, a 
project is underway to review current demand for business travel across each 
Service within the Council. The key focus of the review will be on the grey fleet 
demand with the main objectives being as follows: 

• Develop a clear and broader understanding of business travel activity 
across the Council (current and future) 

• Assess how we can best remove the need for staff to use their own vehicle 
for business use 

• Reduce the need for business travel and in turn the cost of transport 

The aim is to complete the review and report any findings and recommendations 
during the current financial year.  

Page 27



20 | P a g e  

 

The Council currently has no Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points at present and 
has no EVs in operation at the moment. However, EVs have been tested to assess 
their suitability and the Council’s emerging Parking Strategy includes the action to 
consider the provision of electric vehicle charging points at suitable locations.  

7.3 THE WAY FORWARD 
The Council is in an ideal position to move forwards on the vehicle and transport 
agenda but the starting point is to develop a robust business case which identifies 
which roles are suitable for use of electric vehicles. Whilst there are ultra-low 
emission vehicles (ULEVs), such as refuse freighters, they are expensive and the 
business case needs to be made over time. Some of the older small vans could 
potentially be replaced with EV's but clearly this would be dependent on the daily 
distance travelled, availability of recharging stations and payload. The position is 
easier with the grey fleet, where action will be timely due to the current review of 
business travel.  

However, rather than simply seeking to replace a petrol/diesel journeys with an 
electric one, central to developing a business case for reviewing the council’s fleet 
will be conducting a review of current journeys and their purpose. If this data is 
not currently available, then consideration will be given to introducing new 
procedures and deploying some staff time to interrogate past mileage 
documentation to prepare a new database which identifies suitable data.  

Upon collection of the appropriate data a separate Vehicles Plan will be developed 
which will be underpinned by a business case, making clear the potential costs to 
transfer to EVs and the savings that can be expected.  

The Vehicles Plan will aim to cover a ten year plan for vehicles, which will cover 
the Grey Fleet in the short-term, more infrastructure for EVs being installed in the 
medium term, and the Council’s commercial fleet being reviewed in the longer 
term. The aim will be to introduce a fleet of Council owned electric vehicles to 
undertake the journeys required by staff. This will have a number of advantages: 

• For staff, it will mean that they do not have to use their own car 
• For the Council it will reduce cost 
• It will reduce the carbon footprint of the Council and the area 
• It will demonstrate leadership on the green agenda 
• It will lead to chargers being fitted in the City area 
• It will be linked to staff terms and conditions to give staff new benefits, 

such as salary sacrifice to buy an EV, supply of cars at cost, maintenance of 
cars by the Council and fitting of a free home charger 

• If the Council fits the chargers, it can make a profit on the fitting costs  

The Vehicle Plan will also consider the wider situation in Lancaster, including the 
private sector and the public. Charging infrastructure can be installed for the 
benefit of all and the public generally can be encouraged to move to EVs 
themselves by a good communications plan and leadership by example. The Plan 
will also consider the wider applicability of a scheme, for example involving the 
third sector and charities. 

Page 28



21 | P a g e  

 

As part of the move towards EV, financing arrangements will need to be 
considered. If the vehicles were outright purchased in future, rather than leased, it 
would enable the Council to review the vehicles condition and decide whether it 
was financially viable to run it for longer than anticipated based on its condition at 
the time.  

  

Page 29



22 | P a g e  

 

8 RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS 

8.1 INTRODUCTION 
Embracing renewable energy generation requires a step change in the way that 
we think about energy generation. This section considers how Lancaster City 
Council will move forward on developing a greater use of renewable energy 
technologies.  

8.2 THE CURRENT POSITION 
Energy generation requires careful consideration of short term or aesthetic 
impacts in relation to long term or global impacts and a revision of the way that 
we consider the resources that we have in the Lancaster district. Existing 
consumption patterns are reliant on the abundance of the concentrated mineral 
wealth of oil, coal and gas, while alternative technologies are reliant on diffuse 
sources: wind, sunshine, waves and plant material. Such diffuse energy resources 
may often require large land requirements and may have a significant impact on 
land use. 

The Council has a strong record of embracing the use of renewable energy 
technologies which commenced in 2011 when Cabinet approved the allocation of 
up to £750,000 from the General Fund’s Invest to Save Reserve to install solar PV 
panels on the Council’s corporate buildings. In addition, Cabinet approved the 
allocation of up to £1M from the HRA’s Major Repairs Reserve to install solar PV 
panels on council housing communal buildings. This decision was based on 
Council priorities to reduce energy costs and increase income whilst also taking 
action to tackle the challenges of climate change.  

As part of the programme of installations, the Council has successfully installed 
solar PV at the corporate buildings of Salt Ayre Sports Centre and the White Lund 
Depot. In addition, installations have been completed at ten council housing 
properties. The total size of the systems installed at the 12 sites amounts to 
280kW which will provide an annual output for the Council of approximately 
313MWh. 

  

Page 30



23 | P a g e  

 

8.3 THE WAY FORWARD 
The council has successfully overseen the installation of solar PV at a number of 
its properties and the further expansion of this programme will be assessed to 
identify further properties which will be suitable for solar PV installations. 

There are a number of other opportunities for expanding the use of renewable 
energy technologies by Lancaster City Council. The development of this Strategy 
has prioritised the following areas for further investigation and will ensure that 
consideration be given to finding the most advantageous way of delivering these 
projects: 

8.3.1 Development of Ground Mounted Solar PV 
Consideration is being given to the construction of a ground mounted solar PV 
installation on council owned land which may have limited alternative 
development potential. A feasibility study has been commissioned through the 
Lancashire Regeneration Property Partnership in order to inform the design and 
to establish the impact any existing constraints may have on the development and 
the layout of designs. 

8.3.2 The introduction of biomass boilers  
Biomass is a renewable, low carbon fuel that is already widely available 
throughout the UK. Correctly managed, biomass is a sustainable fuel that can 
deliver a significant reduction in net carbon emissions when compared with fossil 
fuels. The primary focus when installing a biomass boiler will be the replacement 
of sites using fuel oil, and sites with large consumption of gas. One proposal could 
be for a biomass boiler to replace the current gas CHP engine in the Council’s Salt 
Ayre leisure centre. An energy investment audit has been commissioned to 
undertake a feasibility study into this proposal amongst other cost saving 
measures.  

8.3.3 The development of a biomass supply chain 
The development of a biomass supply chain would ensure that a processing depot 
is closer to the biomass boilers than external suppliers can be so reducing haulage 
costs. The depot would secure lower cost feedstock if it can obtain wood from the 
Council’s own woodlands (and other such low cost sources). It can also underpin 
woodland management and provide a use for vacant land as well as stabilizing the 
long term costs of energy and creating local jobs. Developing a site to process 
biomass would require investment in new infrastructure including a wood fuel 
shed and drying floor, weighbridge and handlers and loaders.  

8.3.4 The harnessing of wind power 
Over the coming years, opportunities to generate energy through wind-related 
technologies may occur and the council will consider the viability of such 
opportunities as they arise.    

Page 31



24 | P a g e  

 

9 CONCLUSIONS 

This Strategy sets out the agreed direction of travel for Lancaster City Council to 
improve how it uses energy. It sets out the priority areas where effort needs to be 
focused to help us meet our aspirations and has identified a number of key actions 
to be undertaken if these aspirations are to be realised.  

These remain high level to enable the development of more detailed actions 
around them and to be flexible enough to allow a sensible reaction to any new 
opportunities that arise or unexpected national / international policy changes. 

Cabinet has confirmed that delivery of the Renewable Energy Strategy is a priority 
and in view of this has approved the proposed use of the invest to Save Reserve 
(for the General Fund) and the Business Support Reserve (for Council Housing) to 
meet the costs of consultants and in-house provision as necessary to allow full 
proposals to be developed and brought forward for consideration and final 
approval. 

 

  

Page 32



25 | P a g e  

 

10 GLOSSARY 

 

AMR - Automatic Meter Reading 

DECC - Department of Energy and Climate Change 

ECO - Energy Company Obligation 

ESCO - Energy Services Company 

EV - Electric Vehicles 

HRA - Housing Revenue Account 

kWh - Kilo Watt Hour 

LGV - Large Goods Vehicle 

MWh - Mega Watt Hour 

PV - Photovoltaic (solar) 

RCV - Refuse Collection Vehicles 

RHI - Renewable Heat Incentive 

ULEV - Ultra-Low Energy Vehicle 

 

 
 

Page 33



A
pp

en
di

x:
 E

ne
rg

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 –

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 

 
En

er
gy

 R
ed

uc
ti

on
 a

n
d 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 

 
 

 

A
ct

io
n 

Su
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
Le

ad
 r

ol
e 

1.
 

Ex
pl

or
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 fi

na
nc

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
Fu

nd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 id

en
ti

fie
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

(R
ES

O
U

R
CE

S)
 

2.
 

A
ss

ig
n 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

im
pl

em
en

ti
ng

 R
en

ew
ab

le
 E

ne
rg

y 
St

ra
te

gy
  

R
en

ew
ab

le
 E

ne
rg

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
si

gn
ed

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T
 

T
EA

M
 

3.
 

Ex
pl

or
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
sa

vi
ng

 fu
nc

ti
on

al
it

y 
on

 P
Cs

 
En

er
gy

 s
av

in
g 

fu
nc

ti
on

al
it

y 
in

 u
se

 
on

 a
ll 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

PC
s 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

IC
T

 M
A

N
A

G
ER

 

4.
 

Id
en

ti
fic

at
io

n 
of

 w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
f 

al
l m

un
ic

ip
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

En
er

gy
 s

ur
ve

y’
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 fo

r 
al

l 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

SE
N

IO
R

 P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

O
FF

IC
ER

 

5.
 

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 s

ta
ff

 e
ne

rg
y 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
sc

he
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
le

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pe

r 
Se

ct
io

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
R

en
ew

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

St
ra

te
gy

 
St

af
f E

ne
rg

y 
A

w
ar

en
es

s 
sc

he
m

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

CO
R

P
O

R
A

T
E 

P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

CO
M

P
LI

A
N

CE
 O

FF
IC

ER
 

6.
 

To
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 

en
er

gy
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
is

su
es

 to
 th

e 
st

af
f, 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
id

er
 p

ub
lic

. 
R

en
ew

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
CO

R
P

O
R

A
T

E 
P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
CO

M
P

LI
A

N
CE

 O
FF

IC
ER

 

7.
 

To
 e

xp
lo

re
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 in

ce
nt

iv
is

in
g 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

id
en

ti
fie

d 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 M

em
be

rs
  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

 
T

EA
M

 

8.
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
al

ig
nm

en
t o

f p
la

ns
/r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 e

ne
rg

y 
re

du
ct

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t t
hi

s 
ac

ti
on

 p
la

n.
 

A
ll 

Co
un

ci
l r

ep
or

ts
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 R
ES

  
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

 
(G

O
V

ER
N

A
N

CE
) 

Co
un

ci
l B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
 

 
 

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

 
 

 

9.
 

O
pt

im
is

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
pr

op
er

ty
 r

ev
ie

w
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

ne
ed

s 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

SE
N

IO
R

 P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

O
FF

IC
ER

 

10
. 

A
ss

es
s 

op
po

rt
un

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
on

-s
it

e 
en

er
gy

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

at
 a

ll 
co

un
ci

l c
or

po
ra

te
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
m

ad
e 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

SE
N

IO
R

 P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

O
FF

IC
ER

 

11
. 

A
ss

es
s 

op
po

rt
un

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
ra

in
w

at
er

 h
ar

ve
st

in
g 

/ 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 

sy
st

em
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

m
ad

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8 
SE

N
IO

R
 P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

12
. 

G
ai

n 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 e
ne

rg
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ro
le

 in
 p

la
ce

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
SE

N
IO

R
 P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

13
. 

Pr
od

uc
e 

an
 e

ne
rg

y 
re

du
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r 

pr
io

ri
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

op
er

at
io

na
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

. 
En

er
gy

 r
ed

uc
ti

on
 p

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
SE

N
IO

R
 P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 34



Co
un

ci
l B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
 

 
 

So
ci

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 

 
 

 

A
ct

io
n 

Su
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
T

im
es

ca
le

s 
Le

ad
 r

ol
e 

14
. 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

Co
un

ci
l's

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

so
la

r 
PV

  
Su

it
ab

le
 a

ss
et

s 
id

en
ti

fie
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
S 

(H
EA

LT
H

 &
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
/ 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T

) 

15
. 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

Co
un

ci
l's

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

bi
om

as
s 

at
 a

ll 
of

f-
ga

s 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 
A

ll 
co

un
ci

l a
ss

et
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

S 
(H

EA
LT

H
 &

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

/ 
EN

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

T
) 

16
. 

En
su

re
 a

ll 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
or

k 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

op
ti

on
 fo

r 
fit

ti
ng

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 

R
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
S 

(H
EA

LT
H

 &
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
/ 

EN
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T

) 

17
. 

To
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ti
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

-b
ui

ld
 c

ou
nc

il 
ho

us
in

g 
to

 u
se

 d
is

tr
ic

t h
ea

t 
ne

tw
or

ks
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f d
is

tr
ic

t h
ea

t 
ne

tw
or

ks
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

S 
(H

EA
LT

H
 &

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

/ 
EN

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

T
) 

18
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

m
od

el
 to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
op

po
rt

un
it

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

EC
O

 a
nd

 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

EC
O

 m
od

el
 in

 p
la

ce
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
7 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

(H
EA

LT
H

 &
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
) 

P
ri

va
te

 S
ec

to
r 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

 
 

 

19
. 

En
su

re
 th

e 
A

ff
or

da
bl

e 
W

ar
m

th
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 is

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

(H
EA

LT
H

 &
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
) 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
 

 
 

20
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

ro
bu

st
 d

at
a 

se
t o

f j
ou

rn
ey

s 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 o
n 

co
un

ci
l b

us
in

es
s 

   
Jo

ur
ne

y 
m

on
it

or
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

 
(E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T

) 

21
. 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

Pl
an

 
V

eh
ic

le
s 

pl
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

in
 p

la
ce

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

 
(E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

EN
T

) 

22
. 

En
su

re
 E

le
ct

ri
c 

V
eh

ic
le

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
po

in
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 (i
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

El
ec

tr
ic

 v
eh

ic
le

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
po

in
ts

 
si

tu
at

ed
 in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
re

as
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

(E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

T
) 

 
R

en
ew

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 
 

 
 

23
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f f
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 S

ol
ar

 P
V

 a
t t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
Fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 fo
r 

co
un

ci
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
SE

N
IO

R
 P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

24
. 

A
ss

es
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f g

ro
un

d 
m

ou
nt

ed
 s

ol
ar

 P
V

  
A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
m

ad
e 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

SE
N

IO
R

 P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

O
FF

IC
ER

 

25
. 

A
ss

es
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 b
io

m
as

s 
bo

ile
rs

 a
t c

ou
nc

il 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
m

ad
e 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

SE
N

IO
R

 P
R

O
P

ER
T

Y
 

O
FF

IC
ER

 

26
. 

A
ss

es
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f b
io

m
as

s 
su

pp
ly

 c
ha

in
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

m
ad

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

7 
CH

IE
F 

O
FF

IC
ER

 
(E

N
IV

R
O

N
M

EN
T

) 

27
. 

Ex
pl

or
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 w
in

d 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 a
s 

op
po

rt
un

it
ie

s 
ar

is
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

m
ad

e 
O

N
G

O
IN

G 

CH
IE

F 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

(E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

T
) 

/ 
SE

N
IO

R
 P

R
O

P
ER

T
Y

 
O

FF
IC

ER
 

Page 35



 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 36



Page 37
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 40
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 91
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

Work Programme Report 
 

25th February 2015 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Governance)  
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To provide Members with an update of the Committee’s Work Programme.   
 

This report is public.   

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

(1) That the Committee consider the updated Work Programme.  
 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Members are requested to consider the updated Work Programme.   
 

2. Updates 
 
Public Health Statistics 
 
Members of the Committee met with representatives from Public Health and the CCG to 
discuss the statistics for the district particularly for self-harm and Chronic Obstructive 
Pulmonary Disease. At the meeting the Marmot Review was discussed and it was suggested 
that the public health figures would be considered in the work the Committee was going to 
undertake later in the year on Marmot. 
 
At the meeting it was suggested that an age breakdown for the self-harm data be obtained 
as well as adding a comparison with demographically similar areas to the next iteration of 
the profile. 
 
The Public Health Profile 2014 and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy was circulated to the 
Committee after the meeting. 
 
It was also suggested that it would be useful for the Committee to have the Action Plan 
circulated that was being considered by the Health and Well Being Partnership in March. 
 
 

Agenda Item 12 Page 99



 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
As there are no financial implications arising from this report the S151 officer has no 
comments to make.   
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.   
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None.   
 
 

Contact Officer: Jenny Kay 
Telephone: 01524 582065 
E-mail: jkay@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 100



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15  
 
 

Matter for Consideration 
 
 

Officer responsible / 
External 
 

Expected Date of 
Meeting 
 

 
Renewable Energy Strategy.   

 
Chief Officer (Environment).  

 
February 2015.   

 
Update on Empty Properties.   
 

 
Chief Officer (Regeneration and 
Planning).   

 
February 2015.   

 
Detection of Atrial Fibrillation as part of a 
wider strategy for stroke prevention.   

 
Clinical Commissioning Group.   

 
February 2015. 

 
Update report on Health Scrutiny.   

 
Health Scrutiny Representative.   

 
April 2015.   

 
Update on Dementia Friendly Pilot.   

 
Age UK/Help Direct.   

 
April 2015.   

 
Carers visiting older people in their own 
homes and how the carers were trained, 
monitored and employed.   

 
Lancashire County Council.   

 
April 2015. 

 
Monitoring of Older People’s Homes both 
private and public.   

 
Lancashire County Council.   

 
April 2015. 

 
Update on the impact of the new Anti-social 
Behaviour Act 2014 on Ridge Square.   

 
Chief Officer (Environment).   

 
June 2015.   

 
Marmot Review.   

 
Chief Officer (Health &Housing).   

 
Summer 2015.   

 
Royal Lancaster Infirmary - Care Quality 
Commission’s report.   

 
University Hospitals of Morecambe 
Bay NHS Foundation Trust.   

 
Summer 2015.   

 
Update on ‘Better Care Together’ Review of 
Local Health Services.   

 
Lancashire North Clinical 
Commissioning Group.   

 
Summer 2015.   

 
Consideration of Draft Older People’s 
Housing Strategy.   

 
Chief Officer (Health &Housing).   

 
Summer 2015.   

 
Annual consideration of Community Safety.  

 
Chief Officer (Environment).   

 
November 2015.   

 
Review of Fire Station Capacity.   

 
Lancashire Fire & Rescue.   

 
2016 or before.   

 
Annual consideration of Older People’s 
Issues (inviting Age UK and other relevant 
agencies).   

 
Chief Executive.   

 
Summer 2016.   
 

 
Updates on the future of the Castle and on 
the Beyond the Castle project.   

 
Chief Executive. 

 
Tbc.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Briefing Notes 
 
Matter for consideration 

 
Date 

requested 
Officer responsible 

 
Date Circulated 

 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member and area 
of responsibility 
 

Link Member Date of O&S 
Meeting 

Cllr Eileen Blamire - Leader   Cllr June Ashworth  
Cllr Janice Hanson   Cllr Caroline Jackson  
Cllr Abbott Bryning   Cllr Roger Dennison  
Cllr Ron Sands Cllr Roger Mace  
Cllr Karen Leytham Cllr Emma Smith  
Cllr David Smith   Cllr Tony Johnson  
Cllr Jon Barry   Cllr Pam Pickles  
Cllr Tim Hamilton-Cox   Cllr Ian Pattison  
 
 
 

Scoping of Task Groups 
 

Task Group Topic 
 

Date Progress 

 
Litter in the district - focusing 
on the night time economy and 
the concept of taking pride in 

the city.   
 
 

 
Summer 2015.   

 
-.   

 
 

Page 102


	Agenda
	8 Energy Strategy
	REPORTEnergyStrat, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	AppendixA1EnergyStrategyv26, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	AppendixA2ActionPlanv5, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	EXEMPTAppendixB1BusinessCase, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	EXEMPTAppendixB2FeasibilityStudy, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	EXEMPTAppendixB3MiddletonSolarFarmNextStageProposal2, 17/02/2015 Cabinet
	EXEMPTAppendixB4financial, 17/02/2015 Cabinet

	12 Work Programme Report
	Overview Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2014-15


